FW4.14: T256c/2/ no.90



Directory of

CHURCHES, MISSIONS, AND RELIGIOUS INSTITUTIONS of Tennessee



Number 90
WASHINGTON COUNTY
Jonesboro

LIBRARY
UNIVERSITY OF KENTUCKY

THE TENNESSEE HISTORICAL RECORDS SURVEY

Work Projects Administration

1942

DIRECTORY OF CHURCHES, MISSIONS, AND RELIGIOUS INSTITUTIONS OF TENNESSEE

NO. 90. WASHINGTON COUNTY (JONESBORO)

Prepared by

The Tennessee Historical Records Survey Division of Community Service Programs Work Projects Administration

Sponsored by

The Tennessee State Planning Commission

Cosponsored by

Washington County Quarterly Court

Nashville, Tennessee The Tennessee Historical Records Survey January 1942 The Historical Records Survey Program

Sargent B. Child, Director Madison Bratton, State Supervisor

Research and Records Programs

Harvey E. Becknell, Director Milton W. Blanton, Regional Supervisor T. Marshall Jones, State Supervisor

Division of Community Service Programs

Florence Kerr, Assistant Commissioner Blanche M. Ralston, Chief Regional Supervisor Betty Hunt Luck, State Director

WORK PROJECTS ADMINISTRATION

Howard O. Hunter, Commissioner Roy Schroder, Regional Director S. Tate Pease, State Administrator

FOREWORD

This Directory is sent out with the hope that it may prove valuable to visitors, transients, and new residents, as well as to citizens of long standing in Washington County, in order that each one may be able to find without difficulty a Church home wherein he may worship and serve God. Let it be thought of as not merely a Directory but an invitation to enter the house of God and worship Him in the beauty of holiness. As America is traditionally a land of religious freedom, every citizen has the privilege of worshipping according to the dictates of his conscience. Therefore, all religious groups and denominations are herein listed with all helpful information available.

It is our earnest hope and prayer that this service may be of untold spiritual value to many, bringing them in touch with their Creator and Savior, comforting, relieving, and renewing them through the supernatural powers of the One Who is Almighty.

Rev. Robert King, D. D. President, Johnson City Ministerial Association

PREFACE

The <u>Directory of Churches</u>, <u>Missions</u>, <u>and Religious Institutions of Tennessee</u>: <u>Washington County</u>, <u>Jonesboro</u> is one of a series of volumes designed to serve as handbooks for ministers, laymen, students, and research specialists in the field of church history and in sociological and genealogical investigations. The information contained in this volume will be incorporated in a State-wide <u>Directory</u> to be published at a future date. The preparation of this <u>Directory</u> is a necessary preliminary step to insure completeness of inclusion of all churches in the <u>Inventory of the Church Archives of Tennessee</u> being issued in denominational volumes by the Tennessee Historical Records Survey. The number assigned to this <u>Directory</u>, 90, merely indicates the alphabetical position of Washington among the counties of the State.

It is the nature of a directory to defy completion. The absence of any similar listing, however, and the belief that such a directory would be of value to students as a handbook have been additional factors resulting in the issuance of this volume. The churches, missions, and religious institutions are listed by denominations and local affiliations together with their locations, dates of organizations, and the pastors' names and addresses. The preparation of this <u>Directory</u> involved examinations of printed and manuscript church minutes, yearbooks, city and church directories, and institutional catalogs. These were supplemented by personal interviews with religious and institutional officials. The denominational lists were checked with members of the respective faiths. Defunct as well as active churches are included; publications, boards, and institutions of the denominations in Tennessee are indicated. Similar directories have been issued for the counties of Davidson, Hamilton, Knox, and Shelby.

Washington County lies in the extreme northeastern section of Tennessee. It is the State's oldest county, being erected in 1777 as a county of the State of North Carolina, and existed subsequently as a part of the Territory of the United States South of the River Ohio before Tennessee was admitted to the Union. With a population of 51,631 in 1940, it is the seventh largest county in Tennessee. Jonesboro is the county seat, but Johnson City is the largest municipality in the county, and fifth largest city in the State. The Tennessee Historical Records Survey has operated in close cooperation with Washington County, an official cosponsor of the project.

This <u>Directory</u> was compiled by Work Projects Administration workers under the supervision of Robert Cassell, Church Archives Editor of the Tennessee Survey; Tulah W. Fields, Ballard O. Donnell, and Reginald B. Martin rendered much assistance. The field work in Washington County was conducted by Mary B. Mosier, Sidney G. Edgar, and Ruth H. Stuart under the supervision of Edith L. Pierce, District Supervisor. This volume was prepared in accordance with instructions from the Washington Office of the Historical Records Survey Program; detailed editorial comment and criticism of the book have been made by Donald A. Thompson, Assistant Archivist in charge of Church Archives Inventories. The final draft was typed and stencils were cut by Helen P. Allen, Patsy R. Floyd, and Emma McCown.

This volume is preliminary and is subject to revision. Corrections and additional information are solicited and should be addressed to the State Supervisor, 305 Davidson County Courthouse, Nashville.

Up to the present time, approximately 1600 publications have been issued throughout the nation by the Survey Program. In Tennessee, the Survey is engaged in a program of preparing guides and inventories to county and municipal archives, church archives, manuscript depositories and collections, and early American imprints, and making transcriptions of basic public records, chiefly early county court minutes.

A list of the publications of the Tennessee Historical Records Survey follows the indexes to this <u>Directory</u>. The publications of the Historical Records Survey projects in all states are limited in number and in consequence are placed in designated centrally located depositories. Inquiries requesting the locations of the nearest depositories should be addressed to the State Supervisors or to the Division of Community Service Programs, Work Projects Administration, Washington, D. C., for attention of the Director of the Historical Records Survey Program.

Madison Bratton, State Supervisor The Tennessee Historical Records Survey

Nashville January 16, 1942

EXPLANATORY NOTES

All addresses in this Directory are in Washington County unless otherwise indicated. Addresses of the individual churches are shown with respect to the nearest community. In a few instances, names of churches, institutions, or individuals whose addresses or locations are outside of Washington County have been included because of their connection with or relation to organizations in Washington County. All of the churches are listed alphabetically under their denominational affiliations.

The full names and addresses of persons mentioned are given in all cases where the information was available. The exact location of each church or institution is given according to the latest available information. Spelling of street names follows the Johnson City <u>City Directory</u> (1940).

The date of organization is that claimed officially by the church.

The classification system used in this Directory, is, in general, that used by the United States Bureau of the Census, <u>Religious Bodies</u>: 1936. The affiliations and chief officials of the various denominations have been given to avoid any possible confusion; publications, boards, institutions, and services in Tennessee pertaining to the various denominations have also been included.

Defunct churches, being those which have lapsed or merged with other churches, are listed wherever information on them was available. Where indicated, the dates given are the organization date and the defunct date; the pastor is the last regular one serving the church.

Although this Directory is preliminary to a State-wide listing to be issued subsequently, all of the information in this volume has been checked with the various denominational leaders for accuracy and completeness.

Besides an alphabetical index of pastors and executives and a church and institutional name index, this book includes a community index indicating the location in Washington County of all the churches listed.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| FOREWORD | Page |
|--|------|
| | |
| PREFACE | iv |
| EXPLANATORY NOTES | vi |
| SEVENTH DAY ADVENTIST DENOMINATION | 3 |
| ASSEMBLIES OF GOD | 4 |
| BAPTIST BODIES | |
| Missionary Baptists | |
| Southern Baptist Convention | 4 |
| Missionary Baptists (Colored) | |
| National Baptist Convention, U. S. A., Inc | 8 |
| Free Will Baptists | |
| National Association of Free Will Baptists | 9 |
| Toe River Free Will Baptist Association | 10 |
| CHURCH OF CHRIST, SCIENTIST | 10 |
| CHURCH OF THE BRETHREN | 10 |
| CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE | 11 |
| CHURCH OF THE UNITED BRETHREN IN CHRIST | 12 |
| CHURCHES OF CHRIST | 12 |
| CHURCHES OF GOD AND HOLINESS BODIES | |
| Church of God | 13 |
| Church of God in Christ, U. S. A | 14 |
| Church of God or Sanctified Church | 15 |
| Fire Baptized Holiness Church of God of the Americas | 15 |
| DISCIPLES OF CHRIST | 15 |
| TWDEDENDENT CHIPCHES AND MISSIONS | 17 |

Table of Contents

| | Page |
|---|------|
| INSTITUTIONAL CHAPELS | 18 |
| LUTHERAN BODIES | |
| Evangelical Lutheran Synodical Conference of North America | 19 |
| The United Lutheran Church in America | 19 |
| METHODIST BODIES | |
| The Methodist Church | 20 |
| Wesleyan Methodist Connection (or Church) of America | 24 |
| African Methodist Episcopal Zion Church | 24 |
| MINISTERIAL ASSOCIATIONS | 24 |
| PENTECOSTAL ASSEMBLIES OF THE WORLD | 25 |
| PLYMOUTH BRETHREN IV | 25 |
| PRESBYTERIAN BODIES | |
| Cumberland Presbyterian Church | 26 |
| Presbyterian Church in the United States | 26 |
| Presbyterian Church in the United States of America | 28 |
| PROTESTANT EPISCOPAL CHURCH | 30 |
| ROMAN CATHOLIC CHURCH | 31 |
| SALVATION ARMY | 31 |
| SOCIETY OF FRIENDS (ORTHODOX) | 32 |
| INTEXES | |
| Church Name Index | 33 |
| Pastors' Name Index | 37 |
| Community Index | 41 |
| LIST OF PUBLICATIONS OF THE TENNESSEE HISTORICAL RECORDS SURVEY | 46 |

DIRECTORY OF CHURCHES, MISSIONS, AND RELIGIOUS INSTITUTIONS OF TENNESSEE:

WASHINGTON COUNTY, JONESBORO

Name and Location of Church or Instituttion

Date Organized Name and Address of Pastor or Executive

SEVENTH DAY ADVENTIST DENOMINATION

General Conference, Takoma Park, Washington, District of Columbia. Elder J. L. McElhaney, President, Takoma Park, Washington, District of Columbia.

Southern Union Conference, 487 E. Ponce DeLeon Ave., Decatur, Georgia. Elder John K. Jones, President, 487 E. Ponce DeLeon Ave., Decatur, Georgia.

Southern Junior College, Collegedale, Tennessee: Dr. John C. Thompson, President, Collegedale, Tennessee.

Southern Publishing Association, 2119 Twenty-fourth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee: Elder Manley V. Tucker, Superintendent, 2119 Twenty-fourth

Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

<u>Southern Tidings: Elder Paul E. Quinby</u>, Editor, Collegedale, Tennessee. Southern Scroll: Elder Paul E. Quinby, Editor, Collegedale, Tennessee. The Message Magazine: Elder James E. Shultz, Editor, 2309 Seifried St.,

Nashville, Tennessee. The Watchman Magazine: Elder James E. Shultz, Editor, 2309 Seifried St., Nashville, Tennessee.

Georgia Cumberland Conference, 547 Cherokee Ave., S.E., Atlanta, Georgia. Elder R. I. Keate, President, 547 Cherokee Ave., S.E., Atlanta, Georgia.

Seventh Day Adventist Church 116 Adams St. Johnson City

1915

Elder Albern R. P. Johnson 408 Highland Ave. Johnson City

Institutions

Seventh Day Adventist School 1917 116 Adams St. Johnson City

Elder Albern R. P. Johnson, Director 408 Highland Ave. Johnson City

Southern Baptist Convention

ASSEMBLIES OF GOD

General Council, 336 W. Pacific St., Springfield, Missouri. Rev. Ernest S. Williams, General Superintendent, 336 W. Pacific St., Springfield, Missouri.

Tennessee District Council, 927 Eastland Ave., Nashville, Tennessee. Rev. Henry E. Waddle, District Superintendent, 927 Eastland Ave., Nashville, Tennessee.

Eastern Tennessee District Sectional Presbyter.
Rev. Philip H. Lowe, Superintendent, 1412 Euclid Ave., Knoxville,
Tennessee.

Berea Assembly
E. Myrtle and Oakland Aves.
Johnson City

1933

Rev. Lawrence A. Jollay 1107 E. Fairview Ave. Johnson City

BAPTIST BODIES

Missionary Baptists

SOUTHERN BAPTIST CONVENTION

Rev. William W. Hamilton, President, 1220 Washington Ave., New Orleans, Louisiana.

Rev. Hight C. Moore, Senior Recording Secretary, 161 Eighth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

Executive Committee: Rev. Austin Crouch, Executive Secretary, 161 Eighth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

Elementary Guide: Andrew Allen, Editor, 149 Sixth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

Sunday School Board, 161 Eighth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee: Rev. William Francis Powell, President, 2906 Oakland Ave., Nashville, Tennessee.

The Baptist Student: Rev. Frank H. Leavell, Editor, 161 Eighth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

Nashville, Tennessee.

The Intermediate Counselor: Mary V. Lee, Editor, 161 Eighth Ave., N.,
Nashville, Tennessee.

Tennessee Baptist Convention.

Rev. J. G. Hughes, President, Memphis, Tennessee.

Rev. John D. Freeman, Executive Secretary and Treasurer, 149 Sixth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

Tennessee Baptist Convention (Continued)

Baptist and Reflector: Rev. O. Wilburn Taylor, Editor, 149 Sixth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

Baptist Memorial Hospital, Memphis, Tennessee: E. A. Jennings, Superintendent, 350 Hawthorne St., Memphis, Tennessee.

Baptist Orphans' Home, Brentwood, Tennessee: Rev. W. C. Creasman, Superintendent, Franklin Pike, Franklin, Tennessee.

Carson-Newman College, Jefferson City, Tennessee: James T. Warren, President, Jefferson City, Tennessee.

Executive Board of the Tennessee Baptist Convention: Rev. John D. Freeman, Secretary-Treasurer, 149 Sixth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

Harrison-Chilhowee Baptist Academy, Seymour, Tennessee: Rev. Roy Anderson, President, Seymour, Tennessee.

Tennessee College, Murfreesboro, Tennessee: Rev. Merrill D. Moore, President, Murfreesboro, Tennessee.

Union University, Jackson, Tennessee: Rev. John J. Hurt, President, Jackson, Tennessee.

Holston Baptist Association. T. R. Bandy, Moderator, Kingsport, Tennessee.

Tennessee Baptist Historical Society, Central Baptist Church, Roan St., Johnson City: Mrs. Frank McNeese, President, 108 W. Millard St., Johnson City.

| Antioch Church Johnson City, Rt. 1 | 1875 | Rev. Roy Burgner Johnson City, Rt. 1 |
|---|------|---|
| Asbury Church Market St. Extension Johnson City | 1930 | Rev. William H. Green Elizabethton (Carter County) |
| Bethany Church Sulphur Springs Jonesboro, Rt. 6 | 1886 | Rev. Robert H. Crouch Kingsport (Sullivan County) |
| Bethel Church Johnson City, Rt. 5 | 1874 | Rev. William K. Arnold Johnson City, Rt. 4 |
| Boone Creek Church Jonesboro, Rt. 4 | 1881 | Rev. Ericus W. Roach 208 E. Watauga Ave. Johnson City |
| Buffalo Ridge Church Gray's Station Jonesboro | 1779 | Rev. Freeman Wright Sulphur Springs Jonesboro |
| Central Church N. Roan St. Johnson City | 1910 | Rev. William R. Rigell 300 E. Watauga Ave. Johnson City |

Holston Baptist Association (Continued)

| Cherokee Church Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1783 | Rev. Robert H. Crouch Kingsport (Sullivan County) |
|---|------|---|
| Cherry Grove Church Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1898 | Rev. Andrew A. Riggs Greeneville (Greene County) |
| Embreeville Cove Church Embreeville | 1937 | Rev. R. Earl Reece 1207 Claiborne St. Johnson City |
| Enon Church Jonesboro, Rt. 1 | 1882 | Rev. Andrew A. Riggs Greeneville (Greene County) |
| Fall Branch Church Fall Branch | 1827 | Rev. S. Pearce DeVault Jonesboro |
| Harmony Church Jonesboro, Rt. 7 | 1850 | Rev. Robert T. Lyon Bluff City (Sullivan County) |
| Jonesboro Church Jonesboro | 1842 | Rev. Joe Strother Jonesboro |
| Limestone Church Sulphur Springs Jonesboro, Rt. 6 | 1842 | Rev. Freeman Wright Sulphur Springs Jonesboro |
| Lovelace Church Fall Branch | 1879 | Rev. Walter A. Smith Dale St. Kingsport (Sullivan County) |
| Mount Zion Church Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1922 | Rev. Clarence Snodgrass Johnson City, Rt. 5 |
| New Glenwood Church Jonesboro, Rt. 4 | 1912 | Rev. Robert H. Black Kingsport (Sullivan County) |
| New Salem Church Limestone, Rt. 1 | 1845 | Rev. S. B. Lockhart Fall Branch |
| New Victory Church Telford | 1901 | Rev. S. B. Lockhart Fall Branch |
| Oak Grove Church Jonesboro, Rt. 5 | 1932 | No present pastor |
| Oak Hill Church Fall Branch Road | 1909 | Rev. Freeman Wright Sulphur Springs Jonesboro |
| Philadelphia Church Jonesboro, Rt. 6 | 1870 | No present pastor |

Holston Baptist Association (Continued)

| | (Continued) | |
|---|-------------|---|
| Pleasant Grove Church Washington College | 1845 | Rev. S. B. Lockhart Fall Branch |
| Snow Chapel Market St. Extension Johnson City | 1893 | Rev. Frank Cox Bristol (Sullivan County) |
| South Side Church 2004 Wheeler St. Johnson City | 1924 | Rev. H. G. Brochus Telford |
| Tabernacle Church Depot St. Jonesboro | 1939 | Rev. Jake L. Cochran Jonesboro, Rt. 9 |
| Telford Church Telford | 1932 | Rev. John M. Good Telford |
| Temple Church 600 E. Maple St. Johnson City | 1914 | Rev. Russell A. Case 819 W. Pine St. Johnson City |
| Unaka Avenue Church Unaka Ave. at Broadway St. Johnson City | 1922 | Rev. David Brown Bowers 1211 E. Unaka Ave. Johnson City |
| Union Church Johnson City, Rt. 3 | 1846 | Rev. B. N. Canup Mars Hill, North Carolina |
| Defunct | , | |
| Asbury Church Market St. Extension Johnson City | 1842 | No present pastor |
| First Church Main St. Johnson City | 1869-1910 | Rev. John R. Chiles |
| Roan Street Church Roan St. and Watauga Ave. Johnson City | 1907-1910 | Rev. Thomas G. Davis |
| | Missions | |
| Calvary Mission | 1940 | Rev. Albert Hill |

Calvary Mission 1940 Rev. Albert Hill 113 Hart Ave.

Johnson City Johnson City

National Baptist Convention

W. Market St. Johnson City

Holston Baptist Association (Continued)

| Fall Street Chapel 322 Fall St. Johnson City | 1914 | Rev. L. Eugene Burnett 501 E. Myrtle Ave. Johnson City |
|--|-----------|--|
| Maupin Row Mission Maupin Row Johnson City | 1936 | Rev. Charles D. Thompson 307 E. Maple St. Johnson City |
| Temple Mission 1603 Puffalo St. Johnson City | 1937 | Rev. Otis King 216 Wilson Ave. Johnson City |
| Defunct | | |
| Market Street Mission | 1899-1914 | No present pastor |

Missionary Baptists (Colored)

NATIONAL BAPTIST CONVENTION, U. S. A., INC.

Rev. David V. Jamison, President, Selma, Alabama. Rev. James M. Nabrit, Secretary, Whites Creek Pike, Nashville, Tennessee.

American Baptist Theological Seminary, Whites Creek Pike, Nashville, Tennessee: Rev. James M. Nabrit, President, Whites Creek Pike, Nashville, Tennessee.

Baptist Missionary Training School, Whites Creek Pike, Nashville, Tennessee: Rev. James M. Nabrit, President, Whites Creek Pike,

Nashville, Tennessee.

Baptist Young People's Union Board, 409 Gay St., Nashville, Tennessee:

Edward W. D. Isaac, Jr., Secretary, 919 Eleventh Ave., N., Nashville,

Tennessee.

National Baptist Voice: Rev. Russell C. Barbour, Editor, Fourth Ave., N., and Cedar St., Nashville, Tennessee.

Old Ministers' Home, Whites Creek Pike, Nashville, Tennessee: Rev. James M. Nabrit, Superintendent, Whites Creek Pike, Nashville, Tennessee.

Sunday School Informer: Rev. Marshall A. Talley, Editor, 412 Fourth Ave.,

N., Nashville, Tennessee. Sunday School Publishing Board, Fourth Ave., N., and Cedar St., Nashville, Tennessee: Rev. Arthur M. Townsend, Secretary, 708 Cedar St.,

Nashville, Tennessee.

Tennessee Missionary and Educational Convention. Rev. Samuel A. Owens, President, 761 Walker Ave., Memphis, Tennessee.

National Association of Free Will Baptists

Tennessee Missionary and Educational Convention (Continued)

Tennessee Baptist Church News: Rev. D. Albert Jackson, Editor, 528 Patton St., Knoxville, Tennessee.

Bethel District Association. Rev. G. A. Nance, Moderator, Jefferson City, Tennessee.

| Friendship Church 125 Elmo St. Johnson City | 1890 | Rev. Charles C. Fuller 143 Elmo St. Johnson City |
|--|------|--|
| Mill Springs Church Spring St. Jonesboro | 1873 | Rev. A. J. Holley Bluff City (Sullivan County) |
| Mount Olive Church 810 Montgomery St. Johnson City | 1933 | Rev. Silas N. Rogers 219 E. Millard St. Johnson City |
| Thankful Church 104 Water St. Johnson City | 1876 | Rev. Lester R. Womack 807 Boone St. Johnson City |

Free Will Baptists

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS

Rev. James F. Miller, Moderator, Flat River, Missouri. Rev. I. J. Blackwelder, Chairman of Executive Board, 1115 E. Douglas Ave., Nashville, Tennessee.

Tennessee Association of Free Will Baptists. Rev. Paul Woolsey, Moderator, Greeneville, Tennessee.

Union Association of Free Will Baptists. Rev. Charles Y. Elkins, Moderator, Elizabethton, Tennessee, Rt. 5.

Free Will Baptist Orphanage, Greeneville, Tennessee: I. L. Stanley, Superintendent, Greeneville, Tennessee, Rt. 9.

Central Church Main and Delaware Sts. Johnson City 1940

Rev. Charles Y. Elkins Elizabethton, Rt. 5 (Carter County) Toe River Free Will Baptist Association; Church of Christ, Scientist; Church of the Brethren

Union Association of Free Will Baptists (Continued)

| Liberty Church Chuckey, Rt. 4 (Greene County) | 1860 | Rev. Lloyd Light Rogersville (Hawkins County) |
|---|------|---|
| Mount O'Dell Church Embreeville | 1911 | Rev. Bert Taylor 26½ Orleans St. Johnson City |

TOE RIVER FREE WILL BAPTIST ASSOCIATION

Rev. William Bean, Moderator, Beans Creek, North Carolina.

| Berea Church Cherokee Road Johnson City, Rt. 1 | | Rev. James Arrowood Buladeen, North Carolina |
|--|------|--|
| Rich Acre Church Circle Heights Johnson City | 1938 | Rev. William L. Gilton 1002 Afton St. Johnson City |
| Wright's Church 69 Bert St. Johnson City | 1920 | Rev. Nathaniel Campbell Johnson City, Rt. 5 |

CHURCH OF CHRIST, SCIENTIST

The First Church of Christ, Scientist (The Mother Church), Boston,
Massachusetts.
Board of Directors, 107 Falmouth St., Boston, Massachusetts.
Ralph H. Knapp, President, 107 Falmouth St., Boston, Massachusetts.

First Church
222 E. Watauga Ave.
Johnson City

1916

Major Lester A. Ballew,
First Reader
Johnson City, Rt. 2

CHURCH OF THE BRETHREN (Conservative Dunkers)

22 S. State St., Elgin, Illinois. Rufus D. Bowman, Moderator, 3435 Van Buren St., Chicago, Illinois.

Tennessee District. Rev. Augustus M. Laughrun, Moderator, Jonesboro. Church of the Nazarene

Church of the Brethren (Continued)

Ministerial Board: Rev. William Swadley, President, Johnson City, Rt. 3. Board of Christian Education: John A. Pritchett, 2006 Ashwood Ave., Nashville, Tennessee.

| First Church 301 E. Chilhowie Ave. | 1927 | Rev. Jacob C. Wine 310 E. Chilhowie Ave. |
|--|------|--|
| Hawthorne Church Johnson City, Rt. 4 | 1925 | Rev. Augustus M. Laughrun Jonesboro |
| Jackson Park Church Jackson Park Jonesboro | 1924 | Rev. Samuel H. Garst Blountville (Sullivan County) |
| Knob Creek Church Johnson City, Rt. 4 | 1799 | Rev. Frank Isenberg Johnson City, Rt. 1 |
| Limestone Church Limestone | 1845 | Rev. John R. Jackson Limestone |
| New Hope Church Jonesboro, Rt. 9 | 1848 | Rev. Augustus M. Laughrun Jonesboro |
| Pleasant Valley Church Jonesboro, Rt. 9 | 1860 | Rev. George E. Slagle Jonesboro, Rt. 9 |
| Pleasant View Church Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1890 | Rev. John R. Jackson Limestone |
| Defunct | | |
| Cecedar Church Jonesboro, Rt. 9 | | No present pastor |
| Central Point Church Jonesboro, Rt. 1 | 1919 | No present pastor |

CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE

General Assembly, 2923 Troost Ave., Kansas City, Missouri. Rev. Roy T. Williams, General Superintendent and Chairman of the Board, 2923 Troost Ave., Kansas City, Missouri.

Tennessee District Assembly, 4402 Westlawn Drive, Nashville, Tennessee. Rev. John D. Saxon, District Superintendent, Springfield, Tennessee.

Church of the United Brethren in Christ; Churches of Christ

Church of the Nazarene (Continued)

Tennessee Nazarene: Rev. John D. Saxon, Editor, Springfield, Tennessee. Trevecca Nazarene College, Nashville, Tennessee: Rev. A. B. Mackey, President. Nashville. Tennessee.

President, Nashville, Tennessee.

<u>Trevecca Messenger:</u> Mrs. Felix W. Johnson, Editor, Trevecca College,
Murfreesboro Pike, Nashville, Tennessee.

Church of The Nazarene 116 W. Millard St. Johnson City 1934

Rev. Jesse C. Matthews 114 W. Millard St. Johnson City

CHURCH OF THE UNITED BRETHREN IN CHRIST

General Conference, United Brethren Bldg., Dayton, Ohio. Bishop Arthur R. Clippinger, President, 800 Middle Drive, Woodruff Place, Indianapolis, Indiana.

Tennessee Conference.
Bishop Arthur R. Clippinger, 1602 Grand Ave., Dayton, Ohio.
Rev. Vernon C. Adcock, Superintendent, Knoxville, Tennessee, Rt. 2.

The Tennessee Booster: Rev. Vernon C. Adcock, Editor, Knoxville, Tennessee, Rt. 2.

Greeneville District.
Rev. Millard F. O'Neil, District Leader, 410 E. Church St., Greeneville,
Tennessee.

First Church
120 E. Chilhowie Ave.
Johnson City

1896

Rev. Edward B. Jeffers 905 Welbourne St. Johnson City

Defunct

Liberty Church Washington College 1871

No present pastor

CHURCHES OF CHRIST

Apostolic Times: Elder James A. Allen, Editor, 747 Benton Ave., Nashville, Tennessee.

David Lipscomb College, Nashville, Tennessee: Elder Elvin H. Ijams, President, Granny White Pike, Nashville, Tennessee.

Church of God

Churches of Christ (Continued)

Freed-Hardeman College, Henderson, Temnessee: Elder Nicholas B. Hardeman, President, Henderson, Tennessee.

Gospel Advocate: Elder B. C. Goodpasture, Editor, 110 Seventh Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

Tennessee Orphans' Home, Spring Hill, Tennessee: Elder S. O. Owens, Superintendent, Spring Hill, Tennessee.

| Central Church Columbus Powell School Bldg. S. Roan and Maple Sts. Johnson City | 1940 | Elder J. Edward Nowlin 102 W. Chestnut St. Johnson City |
|---|------|---|
| Church of Christ (Col.) 302 W. Eighth Ave. Johnson City | 1928 | Elder Milo Jones 300 W. Eighth Ave. |
| Locust Street Church 110 W. Locust St. Johnson City | 1926 | Elder Robert Boyd 107 W. Poplar St. Johnson City |
| Pleasant View Church Limestone | 1929 | Elder Robert Boyd 107 W. Poplar St. Johnson City |

CHURCHES OF GOD AND HOLINESS BODIES

CHURCH OF GOD

General Ministerial Assembly, Fifth and Chestnut Sts., Anderson, Indiana. Rev. Albert F. Gray, Chairman, 2219 Sixty-eighth Ave., S.E., Portland, Oregon.

State Assembly, Greeneville, Tennessee. Rev. Lewis E. Hall, President, 902 Gallatin Pike, Nashville, Tennessee.

Tacoma Avenue Church

1915
Rev. Clarence A. McGillen
115 Tacoma Ave.

Johnson City

Johnson City

CHURCH OF GOD

General Assembly, Cleveland, Tennessee. Rev. John H. Walker, General Overseer, Cleveland, Tennessee.

Board of Elders: Rev. John H. Walker, Chairman, Cleveland, Tennessee. Church of God Bible Training School, Sevierville, Tennessee: Rev. Zeno C. Tharpe, Superintendent, Sevierville, Tennessee.

Church of God in Christ, U. S. A.

Church of God (Continued)

Church of God Evangel: Rev. Ernest L. Simmons, Editor, Cleveland, Ternessee.

Church of God Orphanage, Cleveland, Tennessee: Rev. J. D. Bright, Chairman, 2519 Trunk St., Cleveland, Tennessee.

Church of God Publishing House, Cleveland, Tennessee: Rev. Ernest L. Simmons, Cleveland, Tennessee.

Lighted Pathway: Mrs. Alda B. Harrison, Editor, Cleveland, Tennessee.

Tennessee Tidings: Rev. John C. Jernigan, Editor, Cleveland, Tennessee.

State Convention, Sevierville, Tennessee. Rev. J. D. Bright, State Overseer, 2519 Trunk St., Cleveland, Tennessee.

Johnson City District. Rev. B. E. Ellis, District Overseer, Kingsport, Tennessee.

Church of God Division and Poplar Sts. Johnson City 1920 Rev. Harry Kutz 205 E. Poplar St. Johnson City

CHURCH OF GOD IN CHRIST, U. S. A. (Colored)

National Convocation, 1121 Mississippi Blvd., Memphis, Tennessee. Bishop Charles H. Mason, General Overseer, 1121 Mississippi Blvd., Memphis, Tennessee.

Board of Overseers: Bishop Charles H. Mason, Chairman, 1365 S. Parkway E., Memphis, Tennessee.

Home and Foreign Missions Board: Bishop A. B. McEwen, Chairman, 1365 S. Parkway E., Memphis, Tennessee.

National Trustee Board: Bishop A. B. McEwen, 1365 S. Parkway E., Memphis, Tennessee.

Whole Truth: Elia V. Sparks, Editor, 820 Montgomery St., Memphis, Tennessee.

Tennessee Convocation.
Bishop A. B. McEwen, Overseer, 1365 S. Parkway E., Memphis, Tennessee.

District of East Tennessee. Elder Clarence G. Bright, 625 N. Main St., Shelbyville, Tennessee.

Church of God in Christ 226 Fall St. Johnson City 1932

Elder Buck C. Boyd 516 Wilson Ave. Johnson City Fire Baptized Holiness Church of God of the Americas; Disciples of Christ

CHURCH OF GOD OR SANCTIFIED CHURCH (Colored)

1037 Jefferson St., Nashville, Tennessee. Elder John L. Rucker, General Overseer, 1008 E. Church St., Knoxville, Tennessee.

Church of God or Sanctified Church 116 E. Fairview Ave. Johnson City Rev. Jesse E. Evans 404 Welbourne St. Johnson City

FIRE BAPTIZED HOLINESS CHURCH OF GOD OF THE AMERICAS (Colored)

1924

General Council, 556 Houston St., S.E., Atlanta, Georgia. Rev. William E. Fuller, Senior Bishop, 556 Houston St., S.E., Atlanta, Georgia.

Tennessee District Convention.
Rev. George H. Sanders, Ruling Elder, 1644 Dora St., Knoxville, Tennessee.

Mount Hope Church 408 W. Eighth Ave. Johnson City 1918

Rev. Maurice L. Bowman Stonega, Virginia

DISCIPLES OF CHRIST

International Convention of Disciples of Christ, Mission Bldg., Indianapolis, Indiana. Rev. H. B. McCormick, President, Roycroft Ave., Lakewood, Ohio.

United Christian Missionary Society, Mission Bldg., Indianapolis, Indiana.

Rev. Robert M. Hopkins, President, Mission Bldg., Indianapolis, Indiana.

Tennessee Christian Missionary Society, Gale Lane, Nashville, Tennessee. Rev. Robert L. Harrell, President, 1406 Eastland Ave., Nashville, Tennessee.

Board of the Tennessee Christian Missionary Society: Rev. Roger T. Nooe, Chairman, 2412 Oakland Ave., Nashville, Tennessee.

Johnson Bible College, Kimberlin Heights, Tennessee: Rev. Robert M. Bell, President, Kimberlin Heights, Tennessee.

Livingston Academy, Livingston, Tennessee: Rev. J. C. Taylor, Principal, Livingston, Tennessee.

Disciples of Christ (Continued)

Milligan College, Milligan College, Tennessee: Rev. C. E. Burns,
President, Milligan College, Tennessee.

The Tennessee Christian: Rev. Wilfred P. Harman and Martha F. James,
Editors, Gale Lane, Nashville, Tennessee.

First District Convention of Disciples of Christ. Harry C. Wagner, President, Kimberlin Heights, Tennessee.

| Bethel Church Garbers Station Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1891 | Rev. George W. Phelps 602 W. Maple St. Johnson City |
|---|------|---|
| Boone Creek Church Johnson City, Rt. 3 | 1828 | Rev. John Hall Elizabethton (Carter County) |
| First Church 335 E. Main St. Johnson City | 1871 | Rev. Joseph H. Dampier 618 W. Pine St. Johnson City |
| Fourth Church 1540 Virginia St. Johnson City | 1926 | Rev. Robert Gill Kimberlin Heights (Knox County) |
| Hale's Chapel Grays Station Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1866 | Rev. John Meredith Elizabethton (Carter County) |
| Harrison's Chapel Browns Mill Johnson City, Rt. 3 | 1916 | Rev. James Owens Elizabethton (Carter County) |
| Highland Church Boone's Station Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1923 | Rev. John Hall Elizabethton (Carter County) |
| Jonesboro Christian Church Cherokee St. Jonesboro | 1866 | Rev. George W. Phelps 602 W. Maple St. Johnson City |
| Lone Oak Church Johnson City, Rt. 3 | 1890 | Rev. George H. Laws Elizabethton (Carter County) |
| Mount Bethel Church Limestone | 1881 | Rev. James A. Taylor Greeneville (Greene County) |

Independent Churches and Missions

Disciples of Christ (Continued)

| Second Church 1201 E. Unaka Ave. Johnson City | 1921 | Rev. Thomas A. Gray 1204 E. Watauga Ave. Johnson City |
|--|------|---|
| Third Church 2101 W. Walnut St. Johnson City | 1921 | Rev. Kenneth Wilson Johnson City, Rt. 5 |
| Union Church Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1835 | Rev. George W. Phelps 602 W. Maple St. Johnson City |

National Christian Convention (Colored), 4244 Evans Ave., St. Louis, Missouri.
Rev. R. W. Watson, President, 4244 Evans Ave., St. Louis, Missouri.

State Convention.

Rev. D. W. Bradley, President, Rogersville, Tennessee.

Christian Plea: Rev. Merl R. Epps, Editor, 449 Fourth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

District Convention.

Rev. D. W. Bradley, President, Rogersville, Tennessee.

| Christian Church Depot St. Jonesboro | 1878 | Rev. Samuel Kenney 207 Elmo St. Johnson City |
|---|------|--|
| Lanes Memorial Church Washington College | 1859 | Rev. A. C. Coakley Washington College |
| West Main Street Church Main and Winter Sts. Johnson City | 1869 | No present pastor |

Defunct

| Cathel Springs Church | 1915-25 | Rev. Samuel Russell |
|-----------------------|---------|---------------------|
| Sulphur Springs | | Spring St. |
| Jonesboro, Rt. 6 | | Jonesboro |

INDEPENDENT CHURCHES AND MISSIONS

| Chestnut | Grove | Union | Church | 1916 | No present | pastor |
|-----------|--------|-------|--------|------|------------|--------|
| Joneshore | a. Rt. | 5 | | | | |

Institutional Chapels

Independent Churches and Missions (Continued)

| Pine Grove Mission Pine Grove School Unaka Ave. Johnson City | 1920 | Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Beasley 423 Lamont St. Johnson City |
|--|------|---|
| Tabernacle of The Lord Jesus Christ 306 W. Eleventh Ave. Johnson City | 1939 | Rev. Charles Patrick 206 Sycamore St. Johnson City |
| The Bible Mission 601 E. Fairview Ave. Johnson City | 1932 | Mrs. Emily Barlowe 604 E. Unaka Ave. Johnson City |
| The House of Prayer (For All People) 408 W. Main St. Johnson City | 1911 | Rev. Clarence O. Swicegood Lenoir City, North Carolina |
| Wayside Mission New Elizabethton Highway, Rt. 5 | 1940 | Rev. Frank Taylor Johnson City, Rt. 3 |
| Defunct | | |
| The Bible Church of God 1008 Division St. Johnson City | 1940 | Rev. Albert Tester |
| The Peoples Mission 503 Lamont St. Johnson City | 1939 | Rev. Otis King 216 Wilson Ave. Johnson City |

INSTITUTIONAL CHAPELS

| Veterans Administration Facility | 1.903 | Rev. Harry J. Geiger 827 W. Pine St. |
|---|-------|--|
| Johnson City | | Johnson City |
| | | Rev. Timothy V. Dwyer 227 E. Market St. Johnson City |
| Washington College | 1780 | James W. Rector, |
| Chapel in Main Bldg. Washington College | | Principal Washington College |
| Washington College | | Washington College |

The United Lutheran Church in America

LUTHERAN BODIES

EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNODICAL CONFERENCE OF NORTH AMERICA

3558 S. Jefferson Ave., St. Louis, Missouri. Prof. L. Fuerbringer, President, 801 De Mun Ave., St. Louis, Missouri.

Synod of Missouri, Ohio, and Other States, 3558 S. Jefferson Ave., St. Louis, Missouri.

Rev. John W. Behnken, President, 533 S. Kenilworth Ave., Oak Park, Illinois.

Western District. Rev. Paul Koenig, President, 3620 Iowa St., St. Louis, Missouri.

Bethlehem Church
W. Watauga Ave.
Johnson City

1924

Rev. George Beiderwieden, Jr. Montrose Court Johnson City

THE UNITED LUTHERAN CHURCH IN AMERICA

39 E. Thirty-fifth St., New York. Rev. Frederick H. Knubel, President, 39 E. Thirty-fifth St., New York, New York.

Lutheran Synod of Virginia.
Rev. J. J. Scherer, Jr., President, 1603 Monument Ave., Richmond, Virginia.

Knoxville Conference.
Rev. Arthur Milton Huffman, President, 211 Emoriland Blvd., Knoxville,
Tennessee.

Luther Zion Church 1850 Rev. Robert N. Peery Washington College Midway

Defunct

Dutch Meeting House 1805 No present pastor Jonesboro, Rt. 3

METHODIST BODIES

THE METHODIST CHURCH

Board of Education, 810 Broadway, Nashville, Tennessee: Bishop Adna W. Leonard, President, 100 Maryland Ave., N.E., Washington, District of Columbia.

Methodist Publishing House, 810 Broadway, Nashville, Tennessee: Ben A. Whitmore and Fred Stone, Agents, 810 Broadway, Nashville, Tennessee.

Southeastern Jurisdiction.
Bishop Urban V. W. Darlington, Senior Bishop, Huntingdon, West Virginia.

Baxter Seminary, Baxter, Tennessee: Dr. Harry L. Upperman, President, Baxter, Tennessee.

Christian Education Magazine: Rev. Boyd M. McKeown, Editor, 810 Broadway, Nashville, Tennessee.

Hiwassee College, Madisonville, Tennessee: T. A. Frick, President, Madisonville, Tennessee.

Holston Orphanage, Greeneville, Tennessee: J. L. Hardin, Superintendent, Greeneville, Tennessee.

Lambuth College, Jackson, Tennessee: Dr. R. E. Womack, President, Jackson, Tennessee.

Martin College, Pulaski, Tennessee: Dr. Keener Rudolph, President, Pulaski, Tennessee.

Methodist Hospital, Memphis, Tennessee: Dr. Henry Hedden, Superintendent, 2161 S. Parkway E., Memphis, Tennessee.

Scarritt College for Christian Workers, Nashville, Tennessee: Dr. Jesse L. Cuninggim, President, 1004 Nineteenth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee.

Tennessee Wesleyan College, Athens, Tennessee: Dr. James L. Robb, President, Athens, Tennessee.

Holston Conference.

Bishop Paul B. Kern, President, 810 Broadway, Nashville, Tennessee.

Johnson City District.

Rev. De Bow Cooper, District Superintendent, 719 W. Pine St., Johnson City, Tennessee.

| Asbury Church Limestone, Rt. 2 | 1897 | Rev. Weston V. Pierce Limestone |
|--|------|---|
| Austin Springs Church Johnson City, Rt. 4 | 1888 | Rev. H. Chubb Bolton 815 W. Pine St. Johnson City |
| Bethesda Church Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1834 | Rev. M. Guy Fleenor Jonesboro, Rt. 1 |

Johnson City District (Continued)

| Borings Chapel Jonesboro, Rt. 4 | 1866 | Rev. Ray Rowland Kingsport, Rt. 2 (Sullivan County) |
|--|------|--|
| College Heights Church Johnson City, Rt. 5 | 1924 | Rev. Robert Parsons 204 E. Eighth Ave. Johnson City |
| Douglas Shed Church Jonesboro, Rt. 2 | 1861 | Rev. Ray Rowland Kingsport, Rt. 2 (Sullivan County) |
| East Park Church 908 Grover St. Johnson City | 1898 | Rev. Willis H. Johnson 906 Grover St. Johnson City |
| Eastern Star Church Jonesboro, Rt. 2 | 1881 | Rev. Ray Rowland Kingsport, Rt. 2 (Sullivan County) |
| Eden Chapel Johnson City, Rt. 3 | 1847 | Rev. M. Guy Fleenor Jonesboro, Rt. 1 |
| Embreeville Church Embreeville | 1868 | Rev. M. Guy Fleenor Jonesboro, Rt. 1 |
| Fairview Church Jonesboro, Rt. 9 | 1891 | Rev. George W. Atkinson Jonesboro, Rt. 6 |
| First Church 201 W. Maple St. Johnson City | 1864 | Rev. Marshall L. Gamble 600 W. Pine St. Johnson City |
| Glenwood Church Jonesboro, Rt. 4 | 1912 | Rev. Harrison Marshall Old Jonesboro Pike Johnson City |
| Hales Chapel Jonesboro, Rt. 5 | 1847 | Rev. George W. Atkinson Jonesboro, Rt. 6 |
| Jonesboro Church Main St. Jonesboro | 1790 | Rev. Emmanuel H. Yankee Jonesboro |
| Limestone Church | 1845 | Rev. Weston V. Pierce Limestone |
| Logans Chapel Fall Branch, Rt. 1 | 1876 | Rev. Charles B. Davis Fall Branch |

Johnson City District (Continued)

| McCardy Church Jonesboro, Rt. 6 | 1841 | Rev. Harold C. Harris Telford |
|--|------|---|
| McKinley Church Johnson City, Rt. 1 | 1897 | Rev. H. Chubb Bolton 815 W. Pine St. Johnson City |
| Marvins Chapel Jonesboro, Rt. 4 | 1851 | Rev. George W. Atkinson Jonesboro, Rt. 6 |
| Millers Chapel Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1939 | Rev. M. Guy Fleenor Jonesboro, Rt. 1 |
| Mount Carmel Church Chuckey, Rt. 4 | 1906 | Rev. Harold C. Harris Telford |
| Mount Wesley Church Telford, Rt. 1 | 1810 | Rev. Harold C. Harris Telford |
| Mount Zion Church Jonesboro, Rt. 2 | 1857 | Rev. Harold C. Harris Telford |
| Munsey Memorial Church Roan and Market Sts. Johnson City | 1865 | Rev. William H. Harrison Johnson City |
| New Victory Church Telford, Rt. 1 | 1900 | Rev. Harold C. Harris Telford |
| Pleasant Grove Church Limestone, Rt. 1 | 1898 | Rev. John N. Smith Limestone, Rt. 4 |
| Sevier Church Jonesboro, Rt. 1 | 1846 | Rev. M. Guy Fleenor Jonesboro, Rt. 1 |
| Speedwell Church Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1916 | Rev. M. Guy Fleenor Jonesboro, Rt. 1 |
| Sulphur Springs Church Jonesboro, Rt. 6 | 1827 | Rev. George W. Atkinson Jonesboro, Rt. 6 |
| Telford Church Telford | 1875 | Rev. Harold C. Harris Telford |
| Tiners Hill Church 800 Tiners Ave. Johnson City | 1920 | Rev. Carroll H. Skeen 1843 Hill Street Johnson City |
| Vincent Church Chuckey, Rt. 3 | 1890 | Rev. M. Guy Fleenor Jonesboro, Rt. 1 |

Johnson City District (Continued)

Defunct

| Asbury Chapel Johnson City, Rt. 3 | 1788 | No present pastor |
|---|------|-------------------|
| Mount Zion Church Leesburg Jonesboro, Rt. 6 | 1838 | No present pastor |
| Urbannah Church Limestone | 1817 | No present pastor |
| Uriel Church Jonesboro, Rt. 3 | 1811 | No present pastor |

Missions

Defunct

Keystone Mission Bert and Cranberry Sts. Johnson City No present pastor

Central Jurisdiction (Colored).

Rev. Robert E. Jones, Senior Bishop, 1375 E. Long St., Columbus, Ohio.

Board of Missions: Rev. Matthew S. Davage, President, 1703 Heiman St., Nashville, Tennessee.

East Tennessee Conference.

Rev. Alexander P. Shaw, Bishop, 1206 Ettling St., Baltimore, Maryland.

Morristown Junior College, Morristown, Tennessee: Dr. John W. Haywood, President, Morristown, Tennessee.

Bristol District.

Rev. Fred D. Thomas, District Superintendent, Pulaski, Virginia.

West Market Street Church 406 W. Market St. Johnson City 1902

Rev. James A. Tiner 406 W. Market St. Johnson City African Methodist Episcopal Zion Church; Ministerial Associations

WESLEYAN METHODIST CONNECTION (OR CHURCH) OF AMERICA

General Conference, 330 E. Onondaga St., Syracuse, New York. Rev. F. R. Eddy, President, 330 E. Onondaga St., Syracuse, New York.

Tennessee Conference.
Rev. Frank K. Smith, President, Rockwood, Tennessee.

Wesleyan Methodist Mission 404 W. Main St. Johnson City

1938

Rev. Clyde H. Blazer 404 W. Main St. Johnson City

AFRICAN METHODIST EPISCOPAL ZION CHURCH (Colored)

General Conference, 1724 "S" St., N.W., Washington, District of Columbia. Rev. William J. Walls, Bishop, 4736 S. Parkway, Chicago, Illinois.

East Tennessee-Virginia Conference. Rev. Cameron C. Alleyne, Presiding Bishop, 1715 W. Montgomery Ave., Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Johnson City District Conference. Rev. Samuel H. Hazzard, Presiding Elder, 119 E. Millard St., Johnson City.

African Methodist Episcopal
Zion Church
Woodrow St.
Jonesboro

Banner Chapel
Limestone

St. Paul's Church
1879
Rev. Leroy Baker
Elizabethton

Rev. Chester A. Coffee
Limestone

Rev. Chester A. Coffee
Limestone

St. Paul's Church
200 Welbourne St.

Johnson City

Rev. Samuel H. Hazzard
119 E. Millard St.
Johnson City

MINISTERIAL ASSOCIATIONS

Colored Ministerial Association 1931 Rev. Samuel Kenney,
African Methodist Episcopal
Zion Church 200 Welbourne St.
Johnson City

Pentecostal Assemblies of the World; Plymouth Brethren IV

Ministerial Associations (Continued)

| Johnson City Ministerial Association Munsey Memorial Church Roan and Market Sts. Johnson City | 1918 | Rev. Robert King, President 217 E. Unaka Ave. Johnson City |
|---|------|---|
| Men's Evangelistic Club 601 E. Fairview Ave. Johnson City | 1936 | Brice Hudson, President 211 Oak St. Johnson City |

PENTECOSTAL ASSEMBLIES OF THE WORLD (Colored)

Annual Convention, 402 W. Fall Creek Blvd., Indianapolis, Indiana. Bishop Samuel Grimes, 53 E. One Hundred and Thirtieth St., New York, New York.

Eastern District Council.
Bishop Samuel Grimes, 53 E. One Hundred and Thirtieth St., New York,
New York.

West Virginia and Eastern Tennessee Council. Elder Paul Jones, Keystone, West Virginia.

| Bethlehem Temple 1409 E. Fairview Ave. Johnson City | 1937 | Elder A. H. Callahan Johnson City |
|---|------|---|
| Grace Temple 330½ Grand Ave. Johnson City | 1936 | Elder Shelton Redd 335 W. Highland Rd. Johnson City |

PLYMOUTH BRETHREN IV

Gospel Hall
601 E. Fairview Ave.
Johnson City

1932

No present pastor

Presbyterian Church in the United States

PRESBYTERIAN BODIES

CUMBERLAND PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

General Assembly, 117 Eighth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee.
Rev. Leonard L. Thomas, Moderator, McKenzie, Tennessee.
Rev. Dan W. Fooks, Stated Clerk and Treasurer, 117 Eighth Ave., S.,
Nashville, Tennessee.

Bethel College, McKenzie, Tennessee: Rev. Ewell K. Reagin, President, McKenzie, Tennessee.

Board of Education: Rev. James W. Stiles, President, 521 S. Thirteenth St., Nashville, Tennessee.

Board of Trustees of the General Assembly: Rev. Dan W. Fooks, Secretary, 117 Eighth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee.

Cumberland Crusader: 117 Eighth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee: Rev. Thomas Campbell, Editor, 754 College St., Shreveport, Louisiana.

Cumberland Presbyterian Publishing House, 117 Eighth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee: C. C. Brock, Manager, 117 Eighth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee.

The Cumberland Presbyterian, 117 Eighth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee: Rev. O. A. Barbee, Editor, 117 Eighth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee.

The Missionary Messenger, 117 Eighth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee:
Rev. Haskell M. Miller, Editor, 629 N. Broadway, Knoxville, Tennessee.

East Tennessee Synod.

Rev. Alfred R. Gourley, Moderator, Limestone, Tennessee. Rev. John L. Mize, Stated Clerk, Loudon, Tennessee.

East Tennessee Presbytery.

Rev. J. B. Park, Stated Clerk, Rt. 8, Greeneville, Tennessee.

Oakland Church 1850 Rev. Alfred R. Gourley Limestone, Rt. 4

Philadelphia Church 1853 Rev. Joe A. Brown Chuckey, Rt. 4 Afton (Greene County)

PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH IN THE UNITED STATES

General Assembly.

Rev. Charles E. Diehl, Moderator, N. Parkway and University St., Memphis, Tennessee.

Rev. E. C. Scott, Stated Clerk, 1240 Liberty Bank Bldg., Dallas, Texas.

Presbyterian Church in the United States (Continued)

Executive Committee of Foreign Missions: Rev. C. Darby Fulton, Executive Secretary, 113 Sixteenth Ave., S., Nashville, Tennessee.

Synod of Appalachia.
Rev. James L. Fowle, Moderator, 98

Rev. James L. Fowle, Moderator, 921 Vine St., Chattanooga, Tennessee. Rev. Fred S. McCorkle, Stated Clerk, 201 College St., Fountain City, Tennessee.

Bachman Home for Boys and Girls, Farner, Tennessee: W. O. Brownlee, Farner, Tennessee.

King College, Bristol, Tennessee: Dr. Thomas P. Johnston, President, Bristol, Tennessee.

Presbyterian News: Rev. Robert H. McCaslin, Editor, 280 Hernando St., Memphis, Tennessee.

Southwestern College, Memphis, Tennessee: Rev. Charles E. Diehl, President, N. Parkway and University St., Memphis, Tennessee.

Presbytery of Holston.

Rev. Arthur R. Buffals, Moderator, Kingsport, Tennessee. Rev. Ray Anderson, Stated Clerk, Blountville, Tennessee.

| First Church Main and Boone Sts. Johnson City | 1869 | Rev. Robert King 217 E. Unaka Ave. Johnson City |
|---|-------|---|
| Leesburg Church Jonesboro, Rt. 6 | 1818 | Rev. William C. Young Whitesburg (Hamblen County) |
| Providence Church Limestone | 1.784 | Rev. C. M. Brown Greeneville, Rt. 4 (Greene County) |

Defunct

| Jonesboro Church | 1868 | No present pastor |
|------------------|------|-------------------|
| 214 W. Main St. | | |
| Jonesboro | | |

Missions

| Asbury Chapel | 1938 | Rev. Joe Armfield |
|----------------------|------|-------------------|
| Market St. Extension | | 607 Franklin St. |
| Johnson City | | Johnson City |

Presbyterian Church in the United States of America

Presbyterian Church in the United States (Continued)

| Calvary Chapel Wilson St. and Harrison Ave. Johnson City | 1912 | Rev. Alfred K. Dudley 612 E. Unaka Ave. Johnson City |
|--|------|--|
| Keystone Chapel Bert and Cranberry Sts. Johnson City | 1918 | Rev. Alfred K. Dudley 612 E. Unaka Ave. Johnson City |
| Princeton Chapel Johnson City, Rt. 4 | 1939 | Rev. Joe Armfield 607 Franklin St. Johnson City |

PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

General Assembly, 514 Witherspoon Bldg., Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Rev. Herbert Booth Smith, Moderator, 514 Witherspoon Bldg., Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Rev. William Barrow Pugh, Stated Clerk, 514 Witherspoon Bldg., Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Synod of Tennessee, 406 Presbyterian Bldg., Nashville, Tennessee.
Rev. Robert M. Stimson, Moderator, 825 Vine St., Chattanooga, Tennessee.
Rev. C. E. Cathey, Acting Stated Clerk, 2301 Westwood Ave., Nashville,
Tennessee.

Alpine School, Alpine, Tennessee: J. Benton Cantrell, Chairman of Executive Committee, Alpine, Tennessee.

Cumberland University, Lebanon, Tennessee: Dr. L. L. Rice, President, Lebanon, Tennessee.

Maryville College, Maryville, Tennessee: Rev. Ralph Waldo Lloyd, President, Maryville, Tennessee.

Mossop School for Girls, Harriman, Tennessee: Rena E. Avery, Principal, Harriman, Tennessee.

Rocky Ford Community Center, Flag Pond, Tennessee: Harriet S. Jackson, Executive, Flag Pond, Tennessee.

Smyrna Community Center, Byrdstown, Tennessee: Grace E. Justice, County Worker, Byrdstown, Tennessee.

Sunset Gap School, Newport, Tennessee: Sara E. Cochrane, Executive, Newport, Tennessee.

Tusculum College, Greeneville, Tennessee: Dr. Charles A. Anderson, President, Greeneville, Tennessee.

Washington College, Washington College, Tennessee: J. M. Scott, Secretary, Washington College, Tennessee.

Presbyterian Church in the United States of America (Continued)

| Presbytery of Holston. |
|--|
| Rev. George K. Neff, Moderator, Jonesboro, Tennessee. |
| Rev. Raymond C. Rankin, Stated Clerk, 608 E. Watauga Ave., Johnson City, |
| Tennessee. |

| Jonesboro Church 126 E. Main St. Jonesboro | 1790 | Rev. George K. Neff 504 W. Main St. Jonesboro |
|--|----------|---|
| Oakland Church Limestone, Rt. 1 | 1906 | Rev. Jesse Bonkemeyer Tusculum (Greene County) |
| Philadelphia Church Chuckey, Rt. 4 | 1906 | Rev. Charles G. McKaraher Shulls Mills, North Carolina |
| Salem Church Washington College | 1780 | Rev. Alexander E. Warren Washington College |
| Watauga Avenue Church 610 E. Watauga Ave. Johnson City | 1892 | Rev. Raymond C. Rankin 608 E. Watauga Ave. Johnson City |
| | Missions | |
| Cash Hollow Mission Johnson City, Rt. 4 | 1926 | Rev. Raymond C. Rankin 608 E. Watauga Ave. Johnson City |

Synod of Blue Ridge (Col.).

Dry Creek Mission

Dry Creek Road

Jonesboro

Rev. Thomas A. Jenkins, Moderator, 1101 E. Main Ave., Knoxville, Tennessee.

Rev. Samuel A. Downer, Stated Clerk, 308 E. Clinch Ave., Knoxville, Tennessee.

1933

Rev. George K. Neff

504 W. Main St.

Jonesboro

Rogersville Presbytery (Col.).

Rev. Samuel J. Ellis, Moderator, 516 Woodlawn Ave., Bristol, Tennessee. Rev. Charles A. Eddington, Stated Clerk, 44 Circle St., Knoxville, Tennessee.

Swift Junior College, Rogersville, Tennessee: R. L. Lee, President, Rogersville, Tennessee.

Protestant Episcopal Church

Presbyterian Church in the United States of America (Continued)

| Bethesda Church 117 E. Millard St. Johnson City | 1890 | Rev. Phillip J. A. Coxe 1307 E. Millard St. Johnson City |
|---|------|--|
| Third Church Jonesboro | 1910 | Rev. Phillip J. A. Coxe 1307 E. Millard St. Johnson City |

PROTESTANT EPISCOPAL CHURCH

General Convention, Church Mission House, 281 Fourth Ave., New York, New York.

Rt. Rev. Henry St. George Tucker, Presiding Bishop, 6501 Three Chopt Road, Richmond, Virginia.

Province of Sewanee.

Rt. Rev. Frank A. Juhan, President, 325 Market St., Jacksonville, Florida.

Diocese of Tennessee.

Rt. Rev. James Matthew Maxon, Bishop of Tennessee, 692 Poplar Ave., Memphis, Tennessee.

Rt. Rev. Edmund Pendleton Dandridge, Bishop Coadjutor, 2307 Elliston Place, Nashville, Tennessee.

Diocesan House, 692 Poplar Ave., Memphis, Tennessee: Bishop James Matthew Maxon, 692 Poplar Ave., Memphis, Tennessee.

DuBose Memorial Training School, Monteagle, Tennessee: Rev. Albert G. Richards, Dean, Monteagle, Tennessee.

Gailor Industrial School (Col.), Mason, Tennessee: Dr. George E. Loder, Principal, Mason, Tennessee.

St. Andrew's School for Mountain Boys, St. Andrews, Tennessee: Rt. Rev. Robert E. Campbell, St. Andrews, Tennessee.

St. Mary's School, 1257 Poplar Ave., Memphis, Tennessee: Helen Augusta Loomis, Principal, 1257 Poplar Ave., Memphis, Tennessee.

St. Mary's School and Mountain Mission, Sewanee, Tennessee: Sister Christabel, Sewanee, Tennessee.

St. Raphael's House, Monterey, Tennessee: Rev. George B. Kirwan, Curator, Monterey, Tennessee.

Sewanee Military Academy, Sewanee, Tennessee: Major-General William R. Smith, Commandant, Sewanee, Tennessee.

University of the South, Sewanee, Tennessee: Dr. Alexander Guerry, Vice-Chancellor, Sewanee, Tennessee.

Roman Catholic Church; Salvation Army

Protestant Episcopal Church (Continued)

Convocation of Knoxville.

Rev. Eugene N. Hopper, Dean, 1131 N. Broadway, Knoxville, Tennessee.

St. John's Church
N. Roan St. and Myrtle Ave.
Johnson City

1891 Rev. Harry F. Keller 708 E. Unaka Ave. Johnson City

ROMAN CATHOLIC CHURCH

Province of Louisville.

Most Rev. John A. Floersh, Archbishop, 1118 S. Third St., Louisville,
Kentucky.

Diocese of Nashville.

Most Rev. William L. Adrian, Bishop of Nashville, 328 Fifth Ave., N.,

Nashville, Tennessee.

Diocesan Officials

Vicar General: Rt. Rev. Albert A. Siener, 2001 West End Ave., Nashville, Tennessee.

Chancellor: Rev. Thomas P. Duffy, 328 Fifth Ave., N., Nashville, Tennessee.

Superintendent of Schools: Rev. S. Ernest Wiley, 2300 Elliston Place, Nashville, Tennessee.

The Register: Rev. George J. Flanigen, Managing Editor, 328 Fifth Ave., No., Nashville, Tennessee.

East Tennessee Deanery. Rt. Rev. Francis T. Sullivan, Dean, 214 E. Eighth St., Chattanooga, Tennessee.

St. Mary's Church 225 E. Market St. Johnson City 1900 Rev. Edward D. Grady 227 E. Market St.

Johnson City

SALVATION ARMY

International Headquarters, 101 Queen Victoria St., London, England. George Lyndon Carpenter, General, 101 Queen Victoria St., London, England.

National Headquarters, 120 W. Fourteenth St., New York, New York. Commissioner Edward J. Parker, National Secretary, 174 N. Third St., New York, New York.

Southern Territorial Headquarters, 54 Ellis St., Atlanta, Georgia. Lieutenant-Commissioner William C. Arnold, Southern Territorial Commander, 54 Ellis St., Atlanta, Georgia.

Divisional Headquarters, 215 W. Chestnut St., Louisville, Kentucky. Major Wesley W. Bouterse, Divisional Commander, 215 W. Chestnut St., Louisville, Kentucky.

Salvation Army Corps 114 S. Boone St. Johnson City.

1906

Captain and Mrs. D. F. Hall 927 E. Hillcrest Drive Johnson City

SOCIETY OF FRIENDS (ORTHODOX)

Five Years Meeting of Friends in America, 101 S. Eighth St., Richmond, Indiana. Rufus M. Jones, Presiding Clerk, Haverford, Pennsylvania.

Wilmington Yearly Meeting of Friends, Wilmington, Ohio. Howard McKay, Recording Clerk, Organia, Ohio.

New Garden Quarterly Meeting of Friends, Gilbert College, Greensboro, North Carolina.

Defunct

Maple Grove Society Jonesboro, Rt. 9

1865 No present pastor

CHURCH AND INSTITUTIONAL NAME INDEX

African Methodist Episcopal Zion Church, 24 Alpine School, 28 American Baptist Theological Seminary, 8 Antioch Baptist Church, 5 Apostolic Times, 12 Asbury Baptist Churches, 5, 7 Asbury Methodist Chapel, Johnson City, Rt. 3, 23 Asbury Methodist Church, Limestone, Rt. 2, 20 Asbury Presbyterian Chapel, U. S., 27 Assemblies of God, 4 Austin Springs Methodist Church, 20

Bachman Home for Boys and Girls, 27 Banner African Methodist Episcopal Zion Chapel, 24 Baptist and Reflector, 5 Baptist Bodies, 4-10 Baptist Memorial Hospital, 5 Baptist Missionary Training School, 8 Baptist Orphans' Home, 5 Baxter Seminary, 20 Berea Assembly of God, 4 Berea Free Will Baptist Church, 9 Bethany Baptist Church, 5 Bethel Baptist Church, 5 Bethel College, 26 Bethel Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Bethesda Methodist Church, 20 Bethesda Presbyterian Church, U. S. A., 30 Bethlehem Lutheran Church, 19 Bethlehem Pentecostal Temple, 25 Boone Creek Baptist Church, 5 Boone Creek Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Borings Methodist Chapel, 21

Calvary Baptist Mission, 7 Calvary Presbyterian Chapel, U. S., 28

Buffalo Ridge Baptist Church, 5

Carson-Newman College, 5 Cash Hollow Presbyterian Mission, U. S. A., 29 Cathel Springs Disciples of Christ Church, 17 Cecedar Church of the Brethren, 11 Central Baptist Church, 5 Central Church of Christ, 13 Central Free Will Baptist Church, 9 Central Point Church of the Brethren, 11 Cherry Grove Baptist Church, 6 Cherokee Baptist Church, 6 Chestnut Grove Union Church, 17 Christian Disciples of Christ Church, 17 Christian Education Magazine, 20 Christian Plea, 17 Church of Christ, 13 Church of Christ, Scientist, 10 Church of God, 13, 14 Church of God Bible Training School, 13 Church of God Evangel, 14 Church of God in Christ, U. S. A., 14 Church of God or Sanctified Church, 15 Church of God Orphanage, 14 Church of God Publishing House, 14 Church of the Brethren (Conservative Dunkers), 10, 11 Church of the Nazarene, 11, 12 Church of the United Brethren in Christ, 12 Churches of Christ, 12, 13 Churches of God and Holiness Bodies, 13, 14 College Heights Methodist Church, 21 Colored Ministerial Association, 24 Cumberland Crusader, 26 Cumberland Presbyterian Church, 26 Cumberland Presbyterian Publishing House, 26

David Lipscomb College, 12 Diocesan House, 30 Disciples of Christ, 15-17 Douglas Shed Methodist Church, 21

Cumberland University, 28

Dry Creek Presbyterian Mission
U. S. A., 29
Harmony Baptist Church, 6
Dubose Memorial Training
School, 30
Academy, 5
Dutch Lutheran Meeting House, 19
Harrison's Chapel Disciples

East Park Methodist Church, 21
Eastern Star Methodist
Church, 21
Eden Methodist Chapel, 21
Elementary Guide, 4
Embreeville Cove Baptist
Church, 6
Embreeville Methodist
Church, 21
Enon Baptist Church, 6
Evangelical Lutheran Synodical
Conference of North
America, 19

Fairview Methodist Church, 21 Fall Branch Baptist Church, 6 Fall Street Baptist Chapel, 8 Fire Baptized Holiness Church of God of the Americas, 15 First Baptist Church, 7 First Church of Christ, Scientist, 10 First Church of the Brethren, 11 First Church of the United Brethren in Christ, 12 First Disciples of Christ Church, 16 First Methodist Church, 21 First Presbyterian Church, U. S., 27 Fourth Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Free Will Baptist Orphanage, 9 Free Will Baptists, 9 Freed-Hardeman College, 13 Friendship Baptist Church, 9

Gailor Industrial School, 30 Glenwood Methodist Church, 21 Gospel Advocate, 13 Gospel Hall, Plymouth Brethren, 25 Grace Pentecostal Temple, 25

Hale's Chapel, Disciples of Christ, 16 Hales Methodist Chapel, 21
Harmony Baptist Church, 6
Harrison-Chilhowee Baptist
Academy, 5
Harrison's Chapel Disciples of
Christ, 16
Hawthorne Church of the Brethren, 11
Highland Disciples of Christ
Church, 16
Hiwassee College, 20
Holston Orphanage, 20

Independent Churches and
Missions, 17, 18
Institutional Chapels, 18

Jackson Park Church of the
Brethren, 11
Johnson Bible College, 15
Johnson City Ministerial
Association, 24
Jonesboro Baptist Church, 6
Jonesboro Christian Disciples of
Christ Church, 16
Jonesboro Methodist Church, 21
Jonesboro Presbyterian Church,
U. S., 27
Jonesboro Presbyterian Church,
U. S. A., 29

Keystone Methodist Mission, 23
Keystone Presbyterian Chapel,
U. S., 28
King College, 27
Knob Creek Church of the Brethren, 11

Lambuth College, 20
Lane's Memorial Disciples of Christ
Church, 17
Leesburg Presbyterian Church,
U. S., 27
Liberty Church of the United Brethren
in Christ, 12
Liberty Free Will Baptist Church, 10
Lighted Pathway, 14
Limestone Baptist Church, 6
Limestone Church of the Brethren, 11
Limestone Methodist Church, 21
Livingston Academy, 15
Locust Street Church of Christ, 13
Logans Methodist Chapel, 21

(Lon-Sai)

Lone Oak Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Lovelace Baptist Church, 6 Luther Zion Lutheran Church, 19 Lutheran Bodies, 19

McCardy Methodist Church, 22 McKinley Methodist Church, 22 Maple Grove Society of Friends, 32 Market Street Baptist Mission, 8 Martin College, 20 Marvins Methodist Chapel, 22 Maryville College, 28 Maupin Row Baptist Mission, 8 Men's Evangelistic Club, 25 Methodist Bodies, 20-24 Methodist Hospital, 20 Methodist Publishing House, 20 Mill Springs Baptist Church, 9 Millers Methodist Chapel, 22 Milligan College, 16 Ministerial Associations, 24 Missionary Baptists, 4-9 Missionary Baptists, Colored, 8, 9 Morristown Junior College, 23 Mossop School for Girls, 28 Mount Bethel Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Mount Carmel Methodist Church, 22 Mount Hope Fire Baptized Holiness Church of God, 15 Mount O'Dell Free Will Baptist

National Association of Free
Will Baptists, 9
National Baptist Convention,
U. S. A., Inc., 8, 9
National Baptist Voice, 8
New Glenwood Baptist Church, 6
New Hope Church of the
Brethren, 11
New Salem Baptist Church, 6

Mount Olive Baptist Church, 9

Mount Zion Baptist Church, 6

Mount Wesley Methodist Church, 22

Church, 10

Church, 22

Mount Zion Methodist

Churches, 22, 23 Munsey Memorial Methodist New Victory Baptist Church, 6 New Victory Methodist Church, 22

Oak Grove Baptist Church, 6
Oak Hill Baptist Church, 6
Oakland Cumberland Presbyterian
Church, 26
Oakland Presbyterian Church,
U. S. A., 29
Old Ministers' Home, 8

Pentecostal Assemblies of the World, 25 Philadelphia Baptist Church, 6 Philadelphia Cumberland Presbyterian Church, 26 Philadelphia Presbyterian Church, U. S. A., 29 Pine Grove Mission, 18 Pleasant Grove Baptist Church, 7 Pleasant Grove Methodist Church, 22 Pleasant Valley Church of the Brethren, 11 Pleasant View Church of Christ, 13 Pleasant View Church of the Brethren, 11 Plymouth Brethren IV, 25 Presbyterian Bodies, 26-30 Presbyterian Church in the United States, 26-28 Presbyterian Church in the United States of America, 28-30 Presbyterian News, 27 Princeton Presbyterian Chapel, U. S., 28 Protestant Episcopal Church, 30, 31 Providence Presbyterian Church,

Rich Acre Baptist Church, 10 Roan Street Baptist Church, 7 Rocky Ford Community Center, 28 Roman Catholic Church, 31

U. S., 27

St. Andrew's School for Mountain Boys, 30 St. John's Protestant Episcopal Church, 31 St. Mary's Roman Catholic Church, 31 St. Mary's School, 30 St. Mary's School and Mountain Mission, 30 St. Paul's African Methodist Episcopal Zion Church, 24 St. Raphael's House, 30 Salem Presbyterian Church, U. S. A., 29 Salvation Army Corps, 32 Scarritt College for Christian Workers, 20 Second Disciples of Christ Church, 17 Seventh Day Adventist Church, 3 Seventh Day Adventist School, 3 Sevier Methodist Church, 22 Sewanee Military Academy, 30 Smyrna Community Center, 28 Snow Baptist Chapel, 7 Society of Friends (Orthodox), 32 South Side Baptist Church, 7 Southern Baptist Convention, 4-8 Southern Junior College, 3 Southern Publishing Association, 3 Southern Scroll, 3 Southern Tidings, 3 Southwestern College, 27 Speedwell Methodist Church, 22 Sulphur Springs Methodist Church, 22 Sunday School Informer, 8 Sunset Gap School, 28 Swift Junior College, 29

Tabernacle Baptist Church, 7 Tabernacle of The Lord Jesus Christ, 18 Tacoma Avenue Church of God, 13 Telford Baptist Church, 7 Telford Methodist Church, 22 Temple Baptist Church, 7 Temple Baptist Mission, 8 Tennessee Baptist Church News, 9 Tennessee College, 5 Tennessee Nazarene, 12 Tennessee Orphans' Home, 13 Tennessee Tidings, 14 Tennessee Wesleyan College, 20 Thankful Baptist Church, 9 The Baptist Student, 4 The Bible Church of God, 18 The Bible Mission, 18

The Cumberland Presbyterian, 26 The House of Prayer (For All People), 18 The Intermediate Counselor, 4 The Message Magazine, 3 The Methodist Church, 20 The Missionary Messenger, 26 The Peoples Mission, 18 The Register, 31 The Tennessee Booster, 12 The Tennessee Christian, 16 The United Lutheran Church in America, 19 The Watchman Magazine, 3 Third Disciples of Christ Church, 17 Third Presbyterian Church, U. S. A., 30 Tiners Hill Methodist Church, 22 Toe River Free Will Baptist Association, 10 Trevecca Messenger, 12 Tusculum College, 28

Unaka Avenue Baptist Church, 7
Union Baptist Church, 7
Union Disciples of Christ
Church, 17
Union University, 5
University of the South, 30
Urbannah Methodist Church, 23
Uriel Methodist Church, 23

Veterans Administration Facility, 18 Vincent Methodist Church, 22

Washington College, 18, 28
Watauga Avenue Presbyterian
Church, U. S. A., 29
Wayside Mission, 18
Wesleyan Methodist Connection
(or Church) of America, 24
Wesleyan Methodist Mission, 24
West Main Street Disciples of
Christ Church, 17
West Market Street Methodist
Church, 23
Whole Truth, 14
Wright's Baptist Church, 10

PASTORS! AND EXECUTIVES! NAME INDEX

Adcock, Vernon C., 12
Adrian, William L., 31
Allen, Andrew, 4
Allen, James A., 12
Alleyne, Cameron C., 24
Anderson, Charles A., 28
Anderson, Ray, 27
Anderson, Roy, 5
Armfield, Joe, 27, 28
Arnold, William C., 32
Arnold, William K., 5
Arrowood, James, 10
Atkinson, George W., 21, 22
Avery, Rena E., 28

Baker, Leroy, 24 Ballew, Lester A., 10 Bandy, T. R., 5 Barbee, O. A., 26 Barbour, Russell C., 8 Barlowe, Mrs. Emily, 18 Bean, William, 10 Beasley, Charles E.; 18 Beasley, Mrs. Charles E., 18 Behnken, John W., 19 Beiderwieden, George, Jr., 19 Bell, Robert M., 15 Black, Robert H., 6 Blackwelder, I. J., 9 Blazer, Clyde H., 24 Bolton, H. Chubb, 19, 20, 22 Bonkemeyer, Jesse, 29 Bouterse, Wesley W., 32 Bowers, David Brown, 7 Bowman, Maurice L., 15 Bowman, Rufus D., 10 Boyd, Buck C., 14 Boyd, Robert, 13 Bradley, D. W., 17 Bright, Clarence G., 14 Bright, J. D., 14 Brochus, H. G., 7 Brock, C. C., 26 Brown, C. M., 27 Brown, Joe A., 26 Brownlee, W. O., 27 Buffals, Arthur R., 27 Burgner, Roy, 5 Burnett, Eugene L., 8 Burns, C. E., 16

Callahan, A. H., 25 Campbell, Nathaniel, 10 Campbell, Robert E., 30 Campbell, Thomas, 26 Cantrell, J. Benton, 28 Canup, B. N., 7 Carpenter, George Lyndon, 31. Case, Russell A., 7 Cathey, C. E., 28 Chiles, John R., 7 Christabel, Sister, 30 Clippinger, Arthur R., 12 Coakley, A. C., 17 Cochran, Jake L., 7 Cochrane, Sara E., 28 Coffee, Chester A., 24 Cooper, De Bow, 20 Cox, Frank, 7 Coxe, Phillip J. A., 30 Creasman, W. C., 5 Crouch, Austin, 4 Crouch, Robert H., 5, 6 Cuninggim, Jesse L., 20

Dampier, Joseph H., 16
Dandridge, Edmund Pendleton, 30
Darlington, U. V. W., 20
Davage, Matthew S., 23
Davis, Charles B., 21
Davis, Thomas G., 7
Devault, S. Pearce, 6
Diehl, Charles E., 26, 27
Downer, Samuel A., 29
Dudley, Alfred K., 28
Duffy, Thomas P., 31
Dwyer, Timothy V., 18

Eddington, Charles A., 29 Eddy, F. R., 24 Elkins, Charles Y., 9 Ellis, B. E., 14 Ellis, Samuel J., 29 Epps, Merl R., 17 Evans, Jesse E., 15

Flanigen, George J., 31 Fleenor, M. Guy, 20-22 Floersh, John A., 31 Fooks, Dan W., 26 Fowle, James L., 27 Freeman, John D., 4, 5 Frick, T. A., 20 Fuerbringer, L., 19 Fuller, Charles C., 9 Fuller, William E., 15 Fulton, C. Darby, 27

Gamble, Marshall L., 21
Garst, Samuel H., 11
Geiger, Harry J., 18
Gill, Robert, 16
Gilton, William L., 10
Good, John M., 7
Goodpasture, B. C., 13
Gourley, Alfred R., 26
Grady, Edward D., 31
Gray, Albert F., 13
Gray, Thomas A., 17
Green, William H., 5
Grimes, Samuel, 25
Guerry, Alexander, 30

Hall, D. F., 32 Hall, John, 16 Hall, Lewis E., 13 Hall, Mrs. D. F., 32 Hamilton, William W., 4 Hardeman, Nicholas B., 13 Hardin, J. L., 20 Harman, Wilfred P., 16 Harrell, Robert L., 15 Harris, Harold C., 22 Harrison, Mrs. Alda B., 14 Harrison, William H., 22 Haywood, John W., 23 Hazzard, Samuel H., 24 Hedden, Henry, 20 Hill, Albert, 7 Holley, A. J., 9 Hopkins, Robert M., 15 Hopper, Eugene N., 31 Hudson, Brice, 25 Huffman, Arthur Milton, 19 Hughes, J. G., 4 Hurt, John J., 5

Ijams, Elvin H., 12 Isaac, Edward W. D., Jr., 8 Isenberg, Frank, 11

Jackson, D. Albert, 9 Jackson, Harriet S., 28 Jackson, John R., 11 James, Martha F., 16 Jamison, David V., 8 Jeffers, Edward B., 12 Jenkins, Thomas A., 29 Jennings, E. A., 5 Jernigan, John C., 14 Johnson, Albern R. P., 3 Johnson, Mrs. Felix W., 12 Johnson, Willis H., 21 Johnston, Thomas P., 27 Jollay, Lawrence A., 4 Jones, John K., 3 Jones, Milo, 13 Jones, Paul, 25 Jones, Robert E., 23 Jones, Rufus M., 32 Juhan, Frank A., 30 Justice, Grace E., 28

Keate, R. I., 3
Keller, Harry F., 31
Kenney, Samuel, 17, 24
Kern, Paul B., 20
King, Otis, 8, 18
King, Robert, 25, 27
Kirwan, George B., 30
Knapp, Ralph H., 10
Knubel, Frederick H., 19
Koenig, Paul, 19
Kutz, Harry, 14

Laughrum, Augustus M., 10, 11
Laws, George H., 16
Leavell, Frank H., 4
Lee, Mary V., 4
Lee, R. L., 29
Leonard, Adna W., 19
Light, Lloyd, 10
Lloyd, Ralph Waldo, 28
Lockhart, S. B., 6, 7
Loder, George E., 30
Loomis, Helen Augusta, 30
Lowe, Philip H., 4
Lyon, Robert T., 6

McCaslin, Robert H., 27 McCorkle, Fred S., 27 McCormick, H. B., 15 McElhaney, J. L., 3 McEwen, A. B., 14 McGillen, Clarence A., 13 McKaraher, Charles G., 29 McKay, Howard, 32 McKeown, Boyd M., 20 Mackey, A. B., 12 McNeese, Mrs. Frank, 5 Marshall, Harrison, 21 Mason, Charles H., 14 Matthews, Jesse C., 12 Maxon, James Matthew, 30 Meredith, John, 16 Miller, Haskell M., 26 Miller, James F., 9 Mize, John L., 26 Moore, Hight C., 4 Moore, Merrill D., 5

Nabrit, James M., 8 Nance, G. A., 9 Neff, George K., 29 Nooe, Roger T., 15 Nowlin, J. Edward, 13

O'Neil, Millard F., 12 Owens, James, 16 Owens, S. O., 13 Owens, Samuel A., 8

Park, J. B., 26
Parker, Edward J., 32
Parsons, Robert, 21
Patrick, Charles, 18
Peery, Robert N., 19
Phelps, George W., 13, 17
Pierce, Weston V., 20, 21
Powell, William Francis, 4
Pritchett, John A., 11
Pugh, William Barrow, 28

Quinby, Paul E., 3

Rankin, Raymond C., 29 Reagin, Ewell K., 26 Rector, James W., 18 Redd, Shelton, 25 Reece, R. Earl, 6 Rice, L. L., 28
Richards, Albert G., 30
Rigell, William R., 5
Riggs, Andrew A., 6
Roach, Ericus W., 5
Robb, James L., 20
Rogers, Silas N., 9
Rowland, Ray, 21
Rucker, John L., 15
Rudolph, Keener, 20
Russell, Samuel, 17

Sanders, George H., 15 Saxon, John D., 11, 12 Scherer, J. J., Jr., 19 Scott, E. C., 26 Scott, J. M., 28 Shaw, Alexander P., 23 Shultz, James E., 3 Siener, Albert A., 31 Simmons, Ernest L., 14 Skeen, Carroll H., 22 Slagle, George E., 11 Smith, Frank K., 24 Smith, Herbert Booth, 28 Smith, John N., 22 Smith, Walter A., 6 Smith, William R., 30 Snodgrass, Clarence, 6 Sparks, Elia V., 14 Stanley, I. L., 9 Stiles, James W., 26 Stimson, Robert M., 28 Stone, Fred, 20 Strother, Joe, 6 Sullivan, Francis T., 31 Swadley, William, 11 Swicegood, Clarence 0., 18

Talley, Marshall A., 8
Taylor, Bert, 10
Taylor, Frank, 18
Taylor, J. C., 15
Taylor, James A., 16
Taylor, O. Wilburn, 5
Tester, Albert, 18
Tharpe, Zeno C., 13
Thomas, Fred D., 23
Thomas, Leonard L., 26
Thompson, Charles D., 8
Thompson, John C., 3

Pastors' and Executives' Name Index (Cont.)

(Tin-You)

Tinner, James A., 23 Townsend, Arthur M., 8 Tucker, Henry St. George, 30 Tucker, Manley V., 3

Upperman, Harry L., 20

Waddle, Henry E., 4
Wagner, Harry C., 16
Walker, John H., 13
Walls, William J., 24
Warren, Alexander E., 29
Warren, James T., 5
Watson, R. W., 17
Whitmore, Ben A., 20
Wiley, S. Ernest, 51
Williams, Ernest S., 4
Williams, Roy T., 11
Wilson, Kenneth, 17
Wine, Jacob C., 11
Womack, Lester R., 9
Womack, R. E., 20
Woolsey, Paul, 9
Wright, Freeman, 5, 6

Yankee, Emmanuel H., 21 Young, William C., 27

COMMUNITY INDEX OF CHURCHES

AUSTIN SPRINGS SECTION

Austin Springs Methodist Church, 20

BAILEY BRIDGE SECTION

Mount Carmel Methodist Church, 22

BETHANY SECTION

Bethany Baptist Church, 5

BOONES CREEK SECTION

Boone Creek Baptist Church, 5 Boone Creek Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Marvins Methodist Chapel, 22

BOWMANTOWN SECTION

Philadelphia Baptist Church, 6

BUSINESS (DOWNTOWN JOHNSON CITY) SECTION

First Baptist Church, 7
First Disciples of Christ
Church, 16
First Presbyterian Church,
U. S., 27
Johnson City Ministerial
Association, 25
Munsey Memorial Methodist
Church, 22
St. Mary's Roman Catholic
Church, 31
Salvation Army Corps, 32
Thankful Baptist Church, 9

CARNEGIE SECTION

Berea Assembly of God, 4
Bethlehem Pentecostal Tample, 25
Gospel Hall Plymouth Brethren
Church, 25
Men's Evangelistic Club, 25
Second Disciples of Christ
Church, 17

CARNEGIE SECTION (Cont.)

The Bible Mission, 18 Unaka Avenue Baptist Church, 7 Watauga Avenue Presbyterian Church, U. S. A., 29

CASH HOLLOW SECTION

Cash Hollow Presbyterian Mission, U. S. A., 29

CHEROKEE ROAD SECTION

Berea Free Will Baptist Church, 10
Lone Oak Disciples of Christ
Church, 16
Millers Methodist Chapel, 22
Speedwell Methodist Church, 22
Union Disciples of Christ
Church, 17

CHEROKEE SECTION

Cherokee Baptist Church, 6
Dutch Meeting House, 19
Eden Methodist Chapel, 21
Pleasant View Church of The
Brethren, 11
Urbannah Methodist Church, 23
Uriel Methodist Church, 23

CIRCLE HEIGHTS SECTION

Maupin Row Baptist Mission, 8 Rich Acre Free Will Baptist Church, 10

CLARK CREEK SECTION

Enon Baptist Church, 6

COLLEGE HEIGHTS SECTION

College Heights Methodist Church, 21

CONKLIN SECTION

Mount Wesley Methodist Church, 22

DRY CREEK SECTION

Cherry Grove Baptist Church, 6 Dry Greek Presbyterian Mission, U. S. A., 29

EAST SECTION (JOHNSON CITY)

East Park Methodist Church, 21 Temple Baptist Church, 7

EMBREEVILLE SECTION

Embreeville Cove Baptist
Church, 6
Embreeville Methodist Church, 21
Mount O'Dell Free Will Baptist
Church, 10

FAIRVIEW SECTION

Fairview Methodist Church, 21
Maple Grove Society of
Friends, 32
New Hope Church of The
Brethren, 11

FALL BRANCH SECTION

Fall Branch Baptist Church, 6 Logans Methodist Chapel, 21 Lovelace Baptist Church, 6 Oak Hill Baptist Church, 6

FALL STREET SECTION

Calvary Baptist Mission, 7
Church of Christ, 13
Church of God in Christ, 14
Fall Street Baptist Chapel, 8
Friendship Baptist Church, 9
Mount Hope Fire Baptized
Holiness Church of God, 15
Mount Olive Baptist Church, 9
Tabernacle of The Lord Jesus
Christ, 18

GRAYS STATION SECTION

Buffalo Ridge Baptist Church, 5 Douglas Shed Methodist Church, 21 (Dry-Kno)

GRAYS STATION SECTION (Cont.)

Eastern Star Methodist Church, 21 Hales Chapel Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Mount Zion Methodist Church, 22

HALES SECTION

Hales Methodist Chapel, 21

HARMONY SECTION

Harmony Baptist Church, 6

JIMTOWN SECTION

Mount Zion Eaptist Church, 6

JONESBORO SECTION

African Methodist Episcopal Zion Church, 24 Christian Disciples of Christ Church, 17 Jackson Park Church of The Brethren, 11 Jonesboro Baptist Church, 6 Jonesboro Christian Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Jonesboro Methodist Church, 21 Jonesboro Presbyterian Church, U. S., 27 Jonesboro Presbyterian Church, U. S. A., 29 Mill Springs Baptist Church, 9 Tabernacle Baptist Church, 7 Third Presbyterian Church, U. S. A., 30

KEYSTONE SECTION

Keystone Methodist Mission, 23 Keystone Presbyterian Chapel, U. S., 28 Wright's Free Will Baptist Church, 10

KNOB CREEK SECTION

Harrison's Disciples of Christ Chapel, 16

KNOB CREEK SECTION (Cont.)

Knob Creek Church of The Brethren, 11 Snow Baptist Chapel, 7

LAMAR SECTION

Bethel Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Bethesda Methodist Church, 20

LEESBURG SECTION

Cecedar Church of The Brethren, 11 Leesburg Presbyterian Church, U. S., 27 McCardy Methodist Church, 22 Mount Zion Methodist Church, 23

LIBERTY SECTION

Liberty Free Will Baptist Church, 10

LIMESTONE SECTION

Banner African Methodist
Episcopal Zion Chapel, 24
Limestone Church of The
Brethren, 11
Limestone Methodist Church, 21
Mount Bethel Disciples of Christ
Church, 16

MOUNTAIN HOME SECTION

Veterans Administration Facility, 18

NEW BRISTOL HIGHWAY SECTION

Union Baptist Church, 7

NEW ELIZABETHTON HIGHWAY SECTION

Wayside Mission, 18

NEW SALEM SECTION

Asbury Methodist Church, 20 New Salem Baptist Church, 6 (Kno-Old)

NEW VICTORY SECTION

New Victory Baptist Church, 6 New Victory Methodist Church, 22

NORTH EAST SECTION (JOHNSON CITY)

Bethesda Presbyterian Church,
U. S. A., 30
Central Baptist Church, 5
Church of God or Sanctified
Church, 15
Colored Ministerial Alliance, 24
First Church of Christ,
Scientist, 10
Roan Street Baptist Church, 7
St. John's Protestant Episcopal
Church, 31
St. Paul's African Methodist
Episcopal Zion Church, 24

NORTH SECTION (JOHNSON CITY)

First Church of The Brethren, 11
First Church of The United
Brethren in Christ, 12

NORTH WEST SECTION (JOHNSON CITY)

Church of The Nazarene, 12 Seventh Day Adventist Church, 3 Seventh Day Adventist School, 3 Tacoma Avenue Church of God, 13

OAK GROVE SECTION

Oak Grove Baptist Church, 6

OAKLAND SECTION

Oakland Cumberland Presbyterian Church, 26 Oakland Presbyterian Church U. S. A., 29

OLD JONESBORO ROAD SECTION

Antioch Baptist Church, 5
Central Point Church of The
Brethren, 11
Glenwood Methodist Church, 21
McKinley Methodist Church, 22
New Glenwood Baptist Church, 6

PHILADELPHIA SECTION

Philadelphia Cumberland
Presbyterian Church, 26
Philadelphia Presbyterian Church,
U. S. A., 29

PINE GROVE SECTION

Pine Grove Mission, 18

PLEASANT GROVE SECTION

Pleasant Grove Methodist Church, 22 Pleasant View Church of Christ, 13

PLEASANT VALLEY SECTION

Chestnut Grove Union Church, 17
Highland Disciples of Christ
Church, 16
Pleasant Valley Church of The
Brethren, 11

PRINCETON SECTION

Hawthorne Church of The Brethren, ll Princeton Presbyterian Chapel, U. S., 28

PROVIDENCE SECTION

Providence Presbyterian Church, U. S., 27

ROAN HEIGHTS SECTION

Fourth Disciples of Christ Church, 16 Grace Pentecostal Temple, 25 Temple Baptist Mission, 8

ROCKINGHAM SECTION

Borings Methodist Chapel, 21

SEVIER SECTION

Sevier Methodist Church, 22

(Phi-Wes)

SOUTH EAST SECTION (JOHNSON CITY)

Central Church of Christ, 13 Church of God, 14 The Bible Church of God, 18

SOUTH WEST SECTION (JOHNSON CITY)

First Methodist Church, 21 Locust Street Church of Christ, 18

SULPHUR SPRINGS SECTION

Bethany Baptist Church, 5 Cathel Springs Disciples of Christ Church, 17 Limestone Baptist Church, 6 Sulphur Springs Methodist Church, 22

TELFORD SECTION

Telford Baptist Church, 7 Telford Methodist Church, 22

VINCENT SECTION

Vincent Methodist Church, 22

WASHINGTON COLLEGE SECTION

Lanes Memorial Disciples of
Christ Church, 17
Liberty Church of The United
Brethren, 12
Luther Zion Lutheran Church, 19
Pleasant Grove Baptist Church, 7
Salem Presbyterian Church,
U. S. A., 29
Washington College, 18

WATAUGA SECTION

Bethel Baptist Church, 5

WEST MARKET STREET EXTENSION SECTION

Asbury Baptist Church, 5
Asbury Baptist Church (defunct), 7
Asbury Methodist Chapel, 23
Asbury Presbyterian Mission,
U. S., 27

(Wes-Y)

WEST SECTION (JOHNSON CITY)

Bethlehem Lutheran Church, 19
Calvary Presbyterian Chapel,
U. S., 28
Central Free Will Baptist
Church, 9
Market Street Baptist Mission, 8
The House of Prayer (For All
People), 18
The Peoples Mission, 18
Wesleyan Methodist Mission, 24
West Main Street Disciples
of Christ Church, 17
West Market Street Methodist
Church, 23

Y SECTION

South Side Baptist Church, 7
Third Disciples of Christ
Church, 17
Tiners Hill Methodist Church, 22

PUBLICATIONS OF THE TENNESSEE HISTORICAL RECORDS SURVEY

Inventory of the County Archives of Tennessee:

- No. 1. Anderson County. (v, 89 p. mimeo., July 1941)

- No. 1. Anderson County. (v, 89 p. mimeo., July 1941)
 No. 2. Bedford County. (vi, 152 p. mimeo., May 1940)
 No. 5. Blount County. (v, 89 p. mimeo., April 1941)
 No. 6. Bradley County. (vi, 137 p. mimeo., January 1941)
 No. 11. Cheatham County. (x, 158 p. mimeo., November 1941)
 No. 17. Crockett County. (v, 115 p. mimeo., August 1940)
 No. 33. Hamilton County. (iv, 130 p. mimeo., November 1937)
 No. 38. Haywood County. (v, 161 p. mimeo., March 1939)
 No. 53. Loudon County. (v, 128 p. mimeo., March 1941)
 No. 75. Butherford County. (vi. 138 p. mimeo., March 1938)

- No. 75. Rutherford County. (vi, 138 p. mimeo., March 1938)
- No. 84. Tipton County. (v, 166 p. mimeo., July 1941)
- No. 95. Wilson County. (v, 177 p. mimeo., September 1938)

Manuscript Publications:

Guide to Collections of Manuscripts in Tennessee.

(vi, 38 p. mimeo., March 1941)

Guide to Depositories of Manuscript Collections in Tennessee. (iv, 27 p. printed, December 1940)

Inventory of the Church Archives of Tennessee:

Jewish Congregations.

(iv, 55 p. mimeo., July 1941)

Tennessee Baptist Convention: Nashville Baptist Association. (iv, 69 p. mimeo., December 1939)

Directory of Churches, Missions, and Religious Institutions of Tennessee:

- No. 19. Davidson County. (v, 79 p. mimeo., May 1940)
- No. 33. Hamilton County. (vi, 75 p. mimeo., December 1940) No. 47. Knox County. (vi, 99 p. mimeo., September 1941)
- No. 79. Shelby County. (ix, 114 p. mimeo., May 1941)

Imprints Publications:

List of Tennessee Imprints, 1793-1840, In Tennessee Libraries.

(viii, 97 p. mimeo., May 1941)

Check List of Tennessee Imprints, 1841-1850.

(xiii, 138 p. mimeo., December 1941)

Special Publications Series:

No. 1. Directory of Libraries in Tennessee. (iii, 17 p. mimeo., August 1939)

Special Publications Series (cont.)

No. 2. History and Organization of the Shelby County Judiciary.

(iii, 14 p. mimeo., November 1939)
A Summary of General Highway Legislation in Tennessee During the Period 1881-1909.

(iii, 14 p. mimeo., January 1940)
A Summary of Special Legislation Relating to the Govern-No. ment of Sullivan County. (ii, 19 p. mimeo., March 1940)

Check List of Acts and Codes of the State of Tennessee, 1792-1939.

(ii, 21 p. mimeo., June 1940) Outline of Development of Methodism in Tennessee. (ii, 16 p. mimeo., December 1940)

Miscellaneous Publications:

Check List of Records Required or Permitted by Law in Tennessee. (v, 51 p. mimeo., August 1937)

Guide to Public Vital Statistics in Tennessee. (iv, 155 p. mimeo., June 1941)

Instructions For Using the County Records as Source Material. (First Edition, 10 p. mimeo., June 1938)

(Second Edition, i, 16 p. mimeo., January 1939)

The Historical Records Survey in Tennessee: A Review of Five Years. (Reprinted from The East Tennessee Historical Society's Publications, XIII (1941), 91-101; 11 p. printed, November 1941)

Transcription of the County Archives of Tennessee:

Minutes of the County Court of Shelby County, Book No. 1, 1820-24. (iv, 106 p. mineo., January 1941)

Minutes of the County Court of Knox County, Book No. "O", 1792-95. (v, 294 p. mimeo., March 1941)

Inventory of the Federal Archives in Tennessee:

The Federal Courts. (96 p. mimeo., April 1940)

The Department of the Treasury. (98 p. mimeo., July 1939)

The Department of War. (91 p. mimeo., July 1938)

The Department of Justice. (37 p. mimeo., November 1939)

The Department of the Navy. (9 p. mimeo., July 1938)

The Department of Agriculture. (187 p. mimeo., September 1938)

The Department of Commerce. (10 p. mimeo., June 1940)
The Department of the Interior. (53 p. mimeo., February 1941)

The Department of Labor. (25 p. mimeo., August 1941)

The Farm Credit Administration. (51 p. mimeo., April 1941)

The Veterans' Administration. (39 p. mimeo., June 1941)

Miscellaneous Agencies. (85 p. mimeo., May 1941)

